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CONDITION
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DESCRIDE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICTAL APPEARANCE

£. Charles is a small community lying on the west bank of
the white River in Arkansas County, Arkansas. It is located
northwest of the intersections of Arkansas Highway #l1 and
the wWhite River, and rests on the southernmost bluffs along
the river's west bank. The Battle of sSt. Charles was fought
along a two mile stretch of the river at and just south of
st. Charles. : -

The few structures now standing near the river's west edge
include two grain storage birs, several private residences,
and a deserted store. No evidence of the Confederate
batteries remains and there are no buildings on the east bank
along this part of the river. ' :

Tn the late 1930's divers explored the watérs whare the three
Confederate vessels were sunk in 18562. Several relics from
the battle were recovered, including two cannons which are
now on display in St. Charles. One cannon is at the White
River Refuge Sub-headquarters, and the other on Broadway
Street.

The white River has moved slightly west during the last

one hundred years, cutting in more closely to the bluff side
of the river. HMost of the area which was once blockaded 1is
now covered by the east bank of the river. However, the
overall river scene probzably looks m ch the same as it did
during the Battle of St. Charles in 1862.

In addition to the two aforementioned cannons, the battle is
commemorated by-a third object. A cast stone marker
approximately twenty feet in height, stands in the center of
the town's main thoroughfare and bears the names of both the
Union and Confederate troops who were killed in the Battle
of Bt. Charles.
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Verbal description:

The riverfront battle site covered the river and its western bank along
a point just north of the river's bend north of St. Charles and south

to a point about two miles south of St. Charles. The Spanish Grant line
approximates the area's southeastern boundary, with a county all-weather
road marking its western boundary. The northwestern boundary lies
parallel and southeast of the highway, and between the county road and
the river. Areas included are marked in orange on the attached maps.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

‘Ong of the most interesting naval battles of the Civil war
was fought on the lower Whits River in~southern Arkansas.
Confederate entrenchments along the bluffs of St. Charles
were attacked by a small "flotilla of Union vessels. Pur-
portedly, one of the most destructive single shots of the
Civil wWar was fired during this engagement when a Confederate
cannon ball struck the steam drum on a Union gun boat, the
Mound City.

Following their victory at Pea Ridge in March, 1852, Union
forces under General Samuel R. Curtis moved from northwest
Arkansas eastward across the state. Their destination was
Jacksonport, on the upper Wnite River in eastern Arkensas,
where they planned to receive supplies and reinforcements.
The Union effort to support Curtis resulted in the Battle

af St. Charies.

Confederate Major-General T. C. Hindman was in charge of

' +he Trans-Mississippi District in the Spring of 1862. In
an official yeport he gave the following account of events
preceding the Battle of St. Charles:

On June 3, anticipating the fall of Memphis, and that
Federal fleets would asczand White River and the Arkansas
to cooperate with Curtis, I took steps for obstructing
both streams...The point selected on the White River

was Saint Charles, about 100 miles above the mouth,
where the first bluff appesars. A pile-driver was taken
there from Little Rock and another hauled overland from
Madison, on the Saint FPrancis. Timber was cut and
floated down and ¢reat energy displayed in the work.

Despite the efforts of Genzsral Hiadman's men, the blockade
of the white River wazs still incomplete when the Fedaral
guphioats wers withan rive miles ¢fF St. Charles . on Juns 19,
1869. ‘on vhit sase day the Confaderetes attempted to com-
plete the river bloc stnking tor < across
the chainel.  Thesc tha steand and
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8. Significance (Continued - Page 2)

Mary Patterson, and the gunboat Maurepas (which would have
been defenseless against the Federal ironclads). The guns

from the Maurepas were moved . ashore to help defend the hastlly

formed Confederate batteries.

The Federal fleet, moving up the White River toward their
scheduled rgndavous with General Curtis, consisted of tha
ironclad gunboaps Mound City and St. louis, the partially
ironclad gunboats Lexington and Conestoga, the tugboat Tiger,
and several transports. On the morning of June 17, 1862, th: thD
Union gunboats encountered the first Rebel pickets about two
miles south of St. Charles. At this point the 46th Indiana

Regiment, led by Colonel G. N. Fitch, was landed and began its

ground advance along the west bank of the river.

The gunboats continued upstream, and,- wvhen in range, their
steady fire was returned by Confederate batteries concealed
in the thick. trees along the west bank. The lead ship,
Mound City, was “ithin 600 yards of a Rekel battery when-
struck with a devastating shot. A 32-pound cannonball pene-
trated her porc casemen+ and. exploded her steam drum. . The
scalding steam forced thoseé who were able -to abandon ship.
Nevertheless, most of the crew members who escaped the - -steam
were killed by Confederate sharpshooters posted along the
bank. One of the injured was Commander A.H. Kilty, leader of
the lnien expedition. . 0Of about 175 crew megbers, oniy 25
answered roll call on the following day.

As the Mound City was towed out of action, the gunships ceased

firing, thus allowing their infantry:to charge the Rebel
batteries. The Union forces far outnumbered the Contederate
defenders, and easily overran the batteries. Among the
gray-clads captured by the Federals was the Confederate
commander, Captain Joseph Fry. The entire battle lasted less

than four hours, and despite the hgavy losses on the Mound City,

was decidedly a Union victory.

After regrouping und ander . Lthe Lnlon flokidla
continuad its exped 1eqvvng Lh crippled

Mound City dockzad nea nfederates' block-
ade of the Whnite Riv e Union
advance; howsver, t Tou-s Arc
locatasd about half dastina-
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to take the white River had been accomplished, and General
Curtis was resupplied by overland routes. ;

As one of the few naval engagements in the state, the Battle
of St. Charles is especially significant in Arkansas' civil

War history. For many years afterwards, portions of the

three sunken vessels could be seen .duririg the low-water season,
but time has taken its toll, and no physical evidence now
remains. Two cannons recovered from the IMaurepas by divers

in the 1930's, are displayed in St. Charles as relics of the
community's more turbulent past.
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The site of the Belknap House is just south of St. Charles on the west
bank of the White River. Several cedar trees and a large magnolia tree
surround the site of the old adobe house. Remnants of the brick founda-
tion are visible in several places, but the entire site is overgrown with
thick underbrush.

Further south on the river's west bank lies the area traversed by the
Union skirmishers. Bounded by the White River on the northeast and

an all-weather road on the south and west, this area encompasses a
woodland tract still in its natural state. This area is covered with
over 29 varieties of native Arkansas trees, many of which are over 150
years old. Because it has been left untouched, this area looks much the
same now as when first viewed by the Union forces during the Battle of
St. Charles.
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To assist their naval flotilla, the 46th Indiana Regiment disembarked
about two miles south of st. Charles. As they moved up the west bank
of the river toward the Confederate batteries, these Union skirmishers
forced Rebel pickets to retreat.

The land traversed by the_Federal troops encompassed an area unaltered
by white men. This virgin territory, which has never been farmed or
built upon, was recently added to the 1ist of Arkansas' natural areas
by the Natural Heritage Commission. Because of its untouched state

of natural land coutour and vegetation, this Civil War kattle site
takes on an added significance.

A second area involved in the Battle of St. Charles is the site of

the Belknap (Adobe) House. Located just south of St. Charles and north

of the natural area mentioned above, the Belknap House was one of

Arkansas' most unusual antebellum structures. Built by Colonel Charles

Belknap, the twenty-room house was uniquely constructed of cypress framework \
with adobe walls. The house and grounds were involved in the battle \.ii
when Federal skirmishers marched through the area in pursuit of

Confederate pickets. Following the battle many of the wounded were taken

to the Belknap House, thus making it a temporary hospital. Though the

house burned in 1962 and its full basement has been f£illed in, the site

of the house is still discernable on its slope ovarlooking the river.

These two areas, one significant for its natural untouched state and

the other as the site of one of Arkansas' most unusual antebellum
houses, were both involved in the Battle of St. Charles. As the site of
the land action in this primarily naval engagement, these two adjoining
tracts are an integral part of the battle site and should be recognized
as such.



